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CM Johnson:
ORDINANCE 2011-205
AN ORDINANCE REGARDING CHAPTER 307 (HISTORIC PRESERVATION), ORDINANCE CODE; DESIGNATING THE CATHERINE STREET FIRE STATION #3 LOCATED AT 1406 GATOR BOWL BOULEVARD, IN COUNCIL DISTRICT 7, JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA, AS A LANDMARK; DIRECTING THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER THE LANDMARK DESIGNATION ON THE ZONING ATLAS; DIRECTING THE CHIEF OF LEGISLATIVE SERVICES TO NOTIFY EACH APPLICANT, THE PROPERTY OWNER AND THE PROPERTY APPRAISER OF THE LANDMARK DESIGNATION AND TO CAUSE SAID DESIGNATION TO BE RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS, the Jacksonville City Council (the “Council”) promulgated Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, to facilitate the designation of landmarks and landmark sites, where appropriate; and

WHEREAS, the property to be designated by this ordinance (hereinafter the “Subject Property”) is the Catherine Street Fire Station #3 located at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard in Council District 7, which served as one of the first fire stations in Jacksonville and constructed approximately ten months after the Great Fire of 1901 and was manned exclusively by a crew of African-American firefighters until 1905; and 

WHEREAS, the property owners within 350 feet of the boundaries of the Subject Property have been notified of the intent to designate the property as a landmark; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, the Council has considered the issue of designating the Subject Property as a landmark, taking into consideration its importance and historical value, as more fully set forth in the Designation Application and Report of the Planning and Development Department, a copy of which is attached hereto as a Composite Exhibit 1, and incorporated by reference herein (the “Application and Report”); and


WHEREAS, public hearings have been held by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, the Council and its committees regarding the issue of designating the Subject Property as a landmark; and

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2011, the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission reviewed  and recommended approval of the designation of landmark (the minutes of the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission are attached hereto as Exhibit 2); and

WHEREAS, by enacting this ordinance, the Council is exercising its power and authority to contribute to  the health, safety and welfare of the City of Jacksonville and finds that the Subject Property should be so designated as a landmark; now, therefore


BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Jacksonville:


Section 1.

Designation of Landmark.  Pursuant to Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, the Council hereby designates the Catherine Street Fire Station #3 located at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard in Council District 7, which consists of a significantly unaltered and appropriately restored structure constructed in early 1902 and currently utilized to house the Jacksonville Fire Museum, as a landmark.


Section 2.

Satisfaction of Requisite Criteria.  The Council hereby finds that the Subject Property satisfies at least four (4) of the requisite criteria set forth in Section 307.104(j), Ordinance Code, as more fully set forth in Composite Exhibit 1.

Section 3.

Landmark Designation on Zoning Atlas.  The Council hereby directs the Zoning Administrator to designate the Subject Property as a landmark on the City’s Zoning Atlas.


Section 4.
Notice of Landmark Designation.  The Council hereby directs the Chief of Legislative Services to notify each applicant, the property owner and the Property Appraiser of the designation of the Subject Property as a landmark.


Section 5.

Recording of Landmark Designation.  The Council hereby directs the Chief of Legislative Services to record this ordinance in the public records for Duval County, Florida.


Section 6.

Effective Date.  The enactment of this ordinance constitutes a quasi-judicial action of the City Council and therefore shall become effective upon signature by the Council President and Council Secretary.
Form Approved:
        Jason R. Teal                 
Office of General Counsel

Legislation Prepared By: Jason R. Teal
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COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1
Page 1 of 63
TABLE OF CONTENTS

L Planning and Development Department - Findings, Conclusions and
Recommendations. :

IL. Designation Application for the property at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard,
Catherine Street Fire Station # 3.

IIL. Legal Description and Map.

Iv. Proof of Publication of Public Notice.

V. List of Property Owners Located within Three Hundred and Fifty (350) Feet of the
Proposed Landmark. '

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1

Page 2 of 63
I.

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT
DEPARTMENT - FINDINGS,
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1
Page 3 of 63
REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
APPLICATION FOR DESIGNATION
AS A CITY OF JACKSONVILLE LANDMARK

LM-11-01
The Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3 :
1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard

GENERAL LOCATION: Adjacent to the Kid Kampus in Metropolitan Park

Prepared in accordance with the JACKSONVILLE ORDINANCE CODE, SECTION 307.104,
the Jacksonville Planning and Development Department hereby forwards to the Jacksonville
Historic Preservation Commission, its "Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations" on the
Landmark Designation, LM-11-01, sponsored by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation
Commission. '

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

(A) At the request of the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, the Jacksonville
Planning and Development Department began preparing a designation application for the
property located at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3.

(B)  Consistent with the JACKSONVILLE ORDINANCE CODE, SECTION 307.104(d), the
Planning and Development Department determined that the application for designation of
the property at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3, as a
Landmark was complete. As required, the Planning and Development Department had
signs posted in front of the property being considered for designation, as well as sent
notices by U.S. Mail to each owner of real property within three hundred and fifty (350)
feet of the proposed site. Notice of the public hearing on the designation of the property
at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3, as a Landmark was
published in the Financial News and Daily Report. Proof of publication will be attached
to this report.

(C)  If designated, any activity affecting the exterior of the property at 1406 Gator Bowl
Boulevard, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3, will require a Certificate of
Appropriateness (COA) from the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission. Before
issuing the Certificate of Appropriateness, the Commission will review the proposed
activity for consistency with the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation
and Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings. Routine repairs and maintenance,
alterations, and new construction not seen from the public right-of-way and other projects
consistent with the Secretary's Standards can be pre-approved by the Jacksonville
Planning and Development Department. However, the following activities will require a
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review by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission.

1. Additions to historic buildings or structures.

2. Major changes to or‘ addition of door and window openings.

3. Demolition of all or part of historic buiidings.

4. New construction and additions.

5. Enclosure of porch, porte-cochere, or garage.

6. Porch replacement.

7. Relocation of historic buildings.

8. Roof replacement with material different from existing or change in roof form.
9. Storefront restoration or replacement.

(D)  Atthe close of the public hearing, the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission
shall determine, whether based upon the evidence, 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard, the
Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3, meets the criteria for designation. In reviewing the
application, the Planning and Development Department has found the application to meet
four of the seven criteria. The four criteria include the following;

SIGNIFICANCE OF PROPOSED LANDMARK AS RELATED TO DESIGNATION
CRITERIA:

A. Its value as a significant reminder of the cultural, historical, architectural, or
archaeological heritage of the City, state or nation.

Summary

Significantly unaltered and appropriately restored, the Catherine Fire Station # 3 represents
perhaps the best and oldest example of a traditional early twentieth century fire station to be
found not only in Jacksonville but in Florida as well. The front fagade of the building is
highlighted by a large central arched entryway, windows with arched headers, as well as star
shaped iron tier rod ends. Constructed approximately ten months after the Great Fire of May
3, 1901, the Catherine Street Fire Station was designed and built during an era in which fire
apparatus were powered by horses who were housed in stalls located within the building.
The building also has significance for being initially manned by a crew of African-American
firemen who worked out of the station until 1905. Saved from demolition in 1972, the
Catherine Street Fire Station was later rehabilitated to house the Jacksonville Fire Museum.
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Because of its large valuable collection of fire fighting related artifacts and documents, the
Catherine Street Fire Station was designated in 1982 as the official museum of the Florida
State Firefighters Association by the Florida Sate Firemen’s Association. Continued loss of
the surrounding historical context and endangered from nearby construction, the Catherine
Street Fire Station was moved in 1994 to the Kids Kampus at Metropolitan Park.

The Early History of Firefighting in Jacksonville

The history of organized firefighting in Jacksonville dates to the 1850’s when the city had
several wells dug, and also installed a fire bell in a tower located at West Adams Street and
Newnan Street.1 At that time, volunteers, called together by the fire bell, would form bucket
brigades running from the well or from the river to the fire. Unfortunately such efforts were
not sufficient to deal with the April 5, 1854 fire that destroyed over seventy buildings in the
business district, as well as the later burning of the city during the third occupation of
Jacksonville by Union forces during the Civil War. With the rapid growth of the city
following the Civil War, the need for more organized volunteer companies was soon
recognized. In 1868, the volunteer Friendship Hook & Ladder Company was formed
followed in 1870 by the Mechanic Steam Fire Engine Company. By 1871, the city had a total
of six volunteer companies organized under the Jacksonville Volunteer Fire Department.
Other companies at that time included Aetna Steam Fire Engine Company, Alert Hose
Company, Phoenix Hose Company and the American Hook & Ladder Company. Operating
out of their own facilities, these companies functioned as a combination political-social
organization that sponsored numerous social events and parades, usually featuring the
firemen in full regalia.

The ability of the companies to fight fires was greatly hindered by deep sandy streets and lack
of sufficient water pressure from the limited number of hydrants available in the city. As a
result, the companies were in competition with each other to arrive first on the scene and take
control of the hydrants. This competition to fight fires resulted in the term, “plug-ugly”
which referred to companies sending their meanest and usually the ugliest fireman to secure a
hydrant from the competition until the full company arrived. With improved waterworks, the
number of hydrants and amount of water pressure was greatly improved. The hydrants were
also supplemented by a new fire alarm telegraph system that included six miles of wires and
forty cell batteries to power fifteen alarm boxes and eight bells. However, the disastrous fire
of 1885 that destroyed the Mohawk Building, the Post Office, U.S. Courthouse, U.S.
Marshall’s Office, and Drew’s Hardware Company, along with soaring insurance rates,
forced the City to institute a paid professional fire department.

The new Jacksonville Fire Department was established on July 15, 1886 with former six-term
Republican mayor, Peter Jones, serving as the first Fire Chief. Under his leadership, not only

1 Summary on history of firefighting in Jacksonville from Wayne W. Wood and Bill Foley, The Great Fire of 1901.
Jacksonville Historical Society, 2001; T. Frederick Davis, History of Early Jacksonville and Vicinity, 1513-1924.
St. Augustine, The Record Company, 1924; and John W. Cowart, Men of Valor: The History of Firefighting in
Jacksonville. Jacksonville, c. 1987.
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was the alarm system improved with the installation of the Gamewell Fire Alarm System, the
department was housed in a central station at 100 East Forsyth Street along with two sub-
stations, # 2 at Main & Ashley Streets and # 3 along East Bay Street. The improvements
were necessitated by the significant expansion of the City in 1887 that included the
annexation of major suburbs such as East Jacksonville, Oakland, Springfield, LaVilla,
Brooklyn, and Riverside. The bell tower at the courthouse and later “B ig Jim”, the steam
whistle at Waterworks Park, supplemented the electrical fire alarm system by distinctive blast
to indicate the presence and location of fires. Two blasts indicated that the fire was in the -
downtown area, with three noting the fire as being in the adjacent neighborhoods. During
this early period, firemen were issued badges in order to assist the police when necessary
with policemen in turn offering their services to the fire chief when in the vicinity of a fire.

The third and perhaps most noted of Jacksonville’s early fire chiefs was Thomas W. Haney
who was appointed in September of 1892. Serving for over thirty years until his retirement in
1926, Haney was descended from a family of firefighters in his hometown of Atlanta,
Georgia. Chief Haney is recognized in Jacksonville history for directing the courageous fire
fighting efforts during the Great Fire of 1901 that in an eight hour period had destroyed over
2,368 buildings scattered over 466 acres in the most intensively developed and populated part
of the city. At that time the largest metropolitan fire to ever occur in the South, the fire of
May 3, 1901 caused fifteen million dollars worth of damage while leaving 8,677 people
homeless.

Under Haney’s tenure new technologies were introduced and improvements made including
additional stations, new and expanded alarm boxes, as well as the use of Hale’s Patent
Swinging Harness that allowed tackle to be hung from the ceiling and dropped directly over
the horses. When the fire alarm went off, the gates on the stall automatically opened
allowing the trained horses to position themselves under the harness. The system was so
efficient and the horses so well trained, that a fire wagon could be out of the fire house within
three minutes of the alarm. Once at the scene of the fire, the horses were unhitched safely
away from the fire. However, by 1912, Haney began replacing horse drawn equipment with
motorized vehicles. By 1921, the last of the fire horses were retired at Fire Station # 7 on
Kings Road in LaVilla.2

History of the Catherine Street Firé Station, # 3

During the tenure of Chief Jones, Fire Station # 3 first opened in the late 1880s along the
south side of East Bay Street between Marsh Street and Hogans Creek. The fire station was
constructed to serve the east part of Downtown, as well as the newly annexed neighborhoods
of East Jacksonville, Fairfield, Oakland, and Campbell’s Addition. Also, the waterfront
along the south side of East Bay Street was occupied by numerous warehouses, naval stores
operations, and sawmills, all served by railroad lines and wharfs along the St. Johns River.

2 Florida Times Union, “Echoes of Alarm Seems to Ring Through Fire Museum”, May 3, 1976, B-3..
Wayne Wood, Jacksonville’s Architectural Heritage, Landmarks for the Future. Jacksonville, FL: University of
North Florida Press, 1989, pp. 44 & 100.
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From the beginning, Fire Station # 3 was manned by a black crew of two privates under
foreman, Henry Butler. The station housed a single 2-wheeled reel with 500° of hose pulled
by “George”.3 Fire Station, # 3 operated at this location until destroyed during the Great Fire
of 1901.

Although Fire Station # 3 re-opened in temporary facilities at the previous site along East Bay
Street, plans were soon made to construct a permanent station. On the advise of its Fire-
Committee, the Board of Bond Trustees approved the purchase in December of 1901 of a 35’
x 105’ lot fronting on the west side of Catherine Street approximately 70 feet north of East
Bay Street.4 By early March of 1902, the chairman of the Fire Committee reported to the
Board that Fire Station # 3 was near completion.5 From March, 1902 to December of 1905,
Fire Station # 3 was again manned by black firefighters, organized as Engine Company No.

3, operating a new American LaFrance Steam Fire Engine. Because of reported misconduct
at Fire Station # 3, the crew of four black firemen was replaced with a white company. The
foreman and driver were discharge with the two privates being placed in other city positions,
thus removing the presence of African American firefighters in the city for decades.6 A
firefighter stationed at # 3 in 1920 later spoke of working seven days a week for $120 a
month. He went on to describe the station as having the standard white ceiling with pea
green walls, and was heated with a pot belly stove. While on duty, the firemen were provided
living accommodations on the second floor with two brass poles providing quick access to
the first floor.7

In 1920, a fire department machine shop and repair facility were located in the rear of Fire
Station # 3. The machine shop operated out of # 3 until a new one was constructed behind
Fire Station # 5 in 1952. In 1921, the horses and stalls were removed to accommodate a fire
truck.8 However, by 1928, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3 was closed down for service
with Engine Company No. 3 being deactivated and moved to the new Fire Station # 14. With
space for only one vehicle and no room to grow, Fire Station # 3 was no longer adequate to
serve the growing city. A much larger station, # 6, was opened at 821 Florida Avenue (A.
Philip Randolph Boulevard) in 1912 followed by an additional station constructed in the port

3 Florida Times Union, “Romance of Old Horse Drawn Fire Engmes of Days-Gone By Recalled by R.S.
Somerville”, August 27, 1934, p. 22.

During the late 1880s, the Jacksonville Fire Department included the Chief, Assistant Chief, three foremen, and
twelve privates. These 17 firefighters manned the Central Fire Station, Fire Station # 2 and 3 twenty-four hours a
day, seven days a week.

4 Board of Bond Trustees Jacksonville, Florida, Minutes, Book 2, p. 330, Special Meeting of December 24, 1901.
5 Ibid, p. 345. Semi-Weekly Times Union & Citizen, “The City to Have Two New Engines”, December 31, 1901, p.
5.

6 Board of Bond Trustees, Jacksonville, Florida, Volume 2, p. 629, meeting of January 4, 1906.

Florida Black Heritage Trail, Florida Department of State, 1992, p. 10. Chief Haney reported on December 6,
1905, he discharged the foreman, Henry Hooker, for being under the influence of alcohol and the driver for
continued insubordination which left the two inexperienced privates.

7 Florida Times Union, Northside Neighbor, “Retired Firefighter Remembers When Horses Pulled Wagon”, October
23, 1985, p. 11,

8 Catherine Street Fire Station, National Register of Historic Places Nomination, listed June 13, 1973.
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area along Talleyrand Avenue in 1928.9 Fire Station # 3 continued to be used as a machine
shop and for storage until finally vacated in 1972 in anticipation of being demolished for the
construction of a new Police Administration Building.10

As the significance of the building became more widely known, the construction plans were
modified to allow the police station to be built around the Catherine Street Fire Station.11
With the building saved, efforts were initiated by members of the Jacksonville Fire
Department to convert the old station into a fire museum, as well as a center for teaching fire
prevention and safety. Using both city and state funds and with the active support of the
Jacksonville Historical and Cultural Conservation Commission, predecessor of the
Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, the building was rehabilitated and became
home to hundreds of fire related artifacts and documents. Most of these donations were made
by current and former fire fighters or their families. Some of the artifacts include the bugle
used by Chief Haney during the 1901 fire, a fire alarm telegraph box, photograph of the
American Hook & Ladder Company of Jacksonville (1870 — 1886), 1898 Ahrens Fox
Steamer Pumper that may have been used to fight the 1901 fire (on loan from the Florida
State Museum), a restored 1912 ladder truck, early fire department run records, as well as a
variety of helmets, coats, fire fighting equipment and photographs, all representing various
periods in Jacksonville’s fire fighting history. The Jacksonville Fire Museum had its grand
opening on May 3, 1976 as part of the Bicentennial celebration, but closed the next day due
to lack of financial resources and staffing to keep open on a set schedule. It was not until
1982, that the museum had its first curator, retired fire fighter, Lt. Mose Bowden.12 In
March of 1994, the Jacksonville Fire Museum was moved from the original site at 12
Catherine Street to the current location adjacent to the Kids Kampus at Metropolitan Park.
This move was in reaction to the possibility of structural damage caused by the nearby
construction of the new jail, the lack of parking for museum visitors, and loss of historical
context.

C. It is identified with a person or persons who significantly contributed to the development
of the City, state, or nation.

Fire Station # 3 also has significance for its association with noted Jacksonville Fire Chief,
Thomas W. Haney (1860-1939), who served from 1892 until his retirement in 1926. Under
Chief Haney’s leadership, the Jacksonville Fire Department evolved from horse powered
apparatus housed in a limited number of small stations to an extensive modern motorized
system. Serving for over thirty years until his retirement in 1926, Haney was descended from
a family of firefighters in his hometown of Atlanta, Georgia. In addition to having two
brothers who were firemen, Chief Haney’s father, Thomas Haney, served as the Chief of the
Atlanta Fire Department. Before the age of 18, Haney joined Atlanta’s volunteer fire

9 Florida Master Site Files, Fire Station # 6, 821 Florida Avenue & # 11, 2732 Talleyrand Avenue. Fire Station # 6
was closed in 1986 and later demolished with # 11 severely altered but still in operation.

10 Bold View, “The Future Fire Museum,” Newsletter of the Consolidated City of Jacksonville, Volume 5, No. 1,
June, 1973, pp. 4 & 5.

11 Wood, p. 44.

12 Jacksonville Journal, “Fire Museum Opens Soon”, September 13, 1982, 6-B.
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department, and became a foreman, when a professional department was organized in the
Georgia capital in 1892.

Hired as Jacksonville’s fire chief in September of 1892, Chief Haney is recognized in the
city’s history for directing the courageous fire fighting efforts during the Great Fire of 1901
that in an eight hour period had destroyed over 2,368 buildings scattered over 466 acres in the
most intensively developed and populated part of the city. At the time the largest
metropolitan fire to ever occur in the South, the fire of May 3, 1901 caused fifteen million
dollars worth of damage while leaving 8,677 people homeless. Contrary to news reports
circulating immediately after the fire, Chief Haney was not killed during the fire or
experienced temporary insanity, but did collapse several times before being taken to the
Riverside Station # 5 to recover from heat exhaustion. After the conflagration, Chief Haney
and his force of 36 fulltime firefighters were praised by the community for their courageous
efforts in fighting the Great Fire of 1901.

Under Haney’s tenure new technologies were introduced and improvements made including
additional stations, new and expanded alarm boxes, as well as the use of Hale’s Patent
Swinging Harness that allowed tackle to be hung from the ceiling and dropped directly over
the horses. However, by 1912, Haney began replacing horse drawn equipment with motorized
vehicles. By 1921, the last of the fire horses were retired at Fire Station # 7 on Kings Road in
LaVilla. Chief Haney was also committed to fire prevention, and lobbied the city for increase
water pressure, new steam pumper engine, and more paved roads to speed access by fire
vehicles. Highly regarded nationally by his peers, Chief Haney went on to serve for several
years as president of the International Association of Firefighters. Chief Haney retired from
the department in 1926, and died at his Springfield residence in 1939.13

Other stations constructed during Chief Haney’s tenure include # 2 at 1344 North Main Street
in the Springfield Historic District, which has operated out of the same building since 1909.
The Central Station at 39 East Adams Street, now a private residence, was built in 1901 and
severely remodeled in 1944. Fire Station # 5 opened in 1911 along Riverside Avenue in
Brooklyn, but in recent years replaced by a new station. Currently, the fate of old Fire Station #
5 along Riverside Avenue has not been determined. Station # 6 on Florida Avenue in East
Jacksonville was constructed in 1911, but has since been demolished along with # 7 (1911)
located on kings Road between Davis and Johnson Streets. Fire Station # 8 at the northeast
corner of Rosselle Street and Stockton Street in Riverside opened in 1923, but has since closed
down, and is now occupied by the Jacksonville Association of Fire Fighters. During the last
year of Chief Haney’s career, Fire Station # 9 opened in 1926 at 351 West 24™ Street, but has
been closed and declared surplus.

13 Information on Thomas W. Haney summarized from Wayne W. Wood and Bill Foley, The Great Fire of 1901.
Jacksonville Historical Society, 2001; T. Frederick Davis, History of Early Jacksonville and Vicinity, 1513-1924.
St. Augustine, The Record Company, 1924; and John W. Cowart, Men of Valor: The History of Firefighting in
Jacksonville. Jacksonville, c. 1987.
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F. It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for study ofa
period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials.

The design of Fire Station # 3 embodies the basic evolution of fire house construction at the
turn of the twentieth century as firefighting itself evolved from its nineteenth century roots
among private volunteer companies to paid professionals that function as an arm of
municipal government. The early private companies usually started with simple storage
houses but many eventually building elaborate facilities that had more the appearance of a
clubhouse consistent with the social nature of these companies. With the establishment of
paid departments, the second story common on the existing fire houses were transformed
from an upstairs clubhouse to dormitories. Over time, the municipal fire stations evolved to
not only include the upstairs dormitories but also accommodations for stables, hose drying
ranks, and a machine shop on the first floor. Housing a hybrid of uses, fire houses began to
take on a more uniform and utilitarian appearance many times copying adjacent commercial
buildings or urban carriage houses.14 :

During the last quarter of the nineteenth century, many new gadgets were devised to speed up
the response time, as evident by the brass sliding pole first used by Chicago firemen in 1878.
By the turn of the twentieth century, the design of fire stations began to incorporate many of
the revival styles popular in residential construction such as the Colonial Revival and the
Spanish Eclectic. The use of these styles was particularly helpful in blending fire stations
constructed in residential surroundings. After World War II, new fire stations tended to be
larger to accommodate bigger equipment, as well as having all functions located on a single
floor in order to speed response while avoiding the use of dangerous sliding poles. The
design of Fire Station # 3 mimicked adjacent commercial and warehouse construction, as'
well as reflected the separation of uses within the same building that was characteristic of
early municipal fire houses. As originally designed and built in 1902, fire fighting apparatus,
the stables, hose drying room, and later a machine shop were located on the first floor of Fire
Station # 3 with living quarters on the second. Quick access from the second floor to the first
was available through the use of the traditional brass sliding pole still present in the building.

G. Its suitability for preservation or restoration.

In utilizing this criterion, it has been the practice of the Planning and Development
Department to evaluate proposed landmarks based on evidence of significant exterior
alterations that have negatively impacted character-defining features, as well as represent
alterations difficult, costly, or impossible to reverse. Further, the degree and nature of any
exterior deterioration, as well as the evidence of long term and potentially on-going neglect
are also a factor in evaluating potential landmarks for their suitability for preservation or
restoration. It is the opinion of the Planning and development Department that Fire Station
#3 is basically sound, and has little evidence of significant exterior alterations or severe

14 Rebecca Zurier, “Firehouses” from Built in the USA, American Buildings from Airports to Zoos. Edited by Diane
Maddox, National Trust for Historic Preservation, The Preservation Press, Washington, D.C., 1985, pp. 78 - 81.
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deterioration.

Fire Station # 3 has been the beneficiary of several significant rehabilitations over the years.
By 1975, over $24,000 in city and state funds had been used to install a new roof, restore
original doors, and complete masonry repairs around the windows.15 These improvements
along with the establishment of the museum also reflected a significant amount of volunteer
service and donations, predominately from fire fighters. Because of its significance to
Jacksonville’s fire fighting history, the building was listed on the National Register of
Historic Places in June of 1973. With the anticipated construction of the new jail, the City of
Jacksonville in 1994 relocated the station to the Kids Kampus at Metropolitan Park. One of
the reasons for relocating the building was potential structural damage caused by the
construction of the new jail, along with the general lack of museum parking and the loss of
the surrounding historical context.16 Recognizing its architectural and historical
significance, the loss of historical context at the original site, as well as its proper placement
on the new site, the National Park Service continued to maintain the building on the National
Register even though relocated (Keeper of the National Register of Historic Places, October
9, 1992). After being relocated to its current site, a major grant in 1994 from the Florida
Division of Historical Resources help fund restoration of windows and masonry, structural
repairs, restoration of interior finishes, new roof, along with mechanical, electric, and
plumbing upgrades. In early May of 2001, the Catherine Street Fire Station # 3 re-opened in
commemoration of the centennial of the Great Fire of 1901.17

15 Jacksonville Journal, “Other Fires Left City in Ashes, Too”. November 13, 1975, p. 19.

16 Florida Times Union, Northside, “Firehouse is Moving to the Met”, October, 10, 1993, p. 1. When initially
saved from demolition, there was serious consideration of relocating the building to another site such as Friendship
Park (Florida Times Union, “New Home Sought for Fire Museum”, October 2, 1974, B-8).

17 Florida Times Union, Northside, “City Marks its Fire Heritage”, May 12, 2001, p. 1.
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1055 South McDuff Avenue, LM-06-07. July 26, 2006.

Page 11
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Florida Master Site Files, Fire Station # 6, 821 Florida Avenue & # 11, 2732 Talleyrand
Avenue:

Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, n.d. Vertical Files — Fire Stations # 35, 6, 10
and 11. Maintained in the offices of the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission.

Newspapers
Semi-Weekly Times Union & Citizen, “The City to Have Two New Engines”, December 31,
1901, p. 5.

F lorida Times -Union:

“Romance of Old Horse Drawn Fu‘e Engines of Days Gone By Recalled by R.S. Somerville”,
August 27, 1934, p. 22. '

“New Home Sought for Fire Mliséum”, October 2, 1974, B-8.
“Echoes of Alarm Seems to Ring Through Fire Museum”, May 3, 1976, B-3

Northside Neighbor, “Retired Firefighter Remembers When Horses Pulled Wagon”, October
23, 1985, p. 11. '

Northside, “Firehouse is Moving to the Met”, October, 10, 1993, p. 1.
Northside, “City Marks its Fire Heritage”, May 12, 2001, p. 1.
Jacksonville Journal

“Other Fires Left City in Ashes, Too”. November 13, 1975, p. 19.

“Fire Museum Opens Soon”, September 13, 1982, 6-B.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the findings of this repbﬁ, the Planning and Development Department recommends that
the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission APPROVE the designation of 1406 Gator
Bowl Boulevard, the Catherine Street Fire Station, # 3, (LM-11-01) as a City of Jacksonville
Landmark.
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DESIGNATION APPLICATION FOR
CATHERINE STREET FIRE STATION #3
AS A LANDMARK
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INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

-'I‘J'; 7(1

-
S :‘:‘, .,-\",-_

‘_—

) FROM fies
Farm 10-300° UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR TaTE:
{July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE Florida
COUNTY:
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES Duval
INYENTORY - NOMINATION FORM FOR NPS USE ONLY
ENTRY NUMBER OATE
( Type all entries — complete apph"able secnons) ;
BENaMe 0 ‘ RESSRERE - % wET s

C OMMON:

Catherine Street Fire Station

AND/GR msrﬁfmc: o? ;/,77 6/‘5'{

Dol QL.

STREET AND r;uuaen [l//ﬂ g‘ﬁ/amr

54 - 797

% Street ,
T JeiTY OR TOWN: ra

it -

(;v Mcﬂalq/r%ﬂ fdf/(',

Jacksonville
STATE cope |counTy: cooE
Florida _ 112 Duval ___. 031 _
LASSEFICATION A A I e Cee g
CATEGORY ; ACCESSIBLE
W
(Check One) OWNERSHIP STATUS TO THE PUBLIC
[ Districr X Building Ch Public Public Acquisition: [ Occupied Yes:
O Sits O Structure Private 3 In Process 7 Unaccupied Rumc‘ud
' ] Object [ Both O Being Considerad (O Preservation work O Unrestricted
' in progress D No
PARKSENT USE (Check One or Mare as Appropriato)
O Agricultural ] Goverament (3 Park [J Transportation [J Commants
3 Commercisal [ indusirial {J Private Residence (33 Other (Spacity) —
Q Educational O Milieary [ Religious stqr age bUll
[J Entertainment 0 Museum O Scientific by the fire department

e

pulls

ding

[4_OWNER OF PROPERTY L ALLLE on a mu 1S
maa S NAME: contemplated. “
City of Jacksonville 3
STREET AND NUMBER: n
CITY OR TOWN: STATE: cooe
Jacksonville Florida 12
[S. LOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION S
COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC: 3
Duval County Courthouse ¢
STREET AND NUMBER: :
Bay Street ; -
C(TY OR TOWN: { STATE coog
Jacksonville H Florida 12
A
|6.: REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS N A R .
TITLE OF SURVYEY: . ;‘
none 1
DATE OF SURVEY: (O Federal {O State {J County O Local z 3
DEPOSITORY FOR JURVEY RECORDS: g %
SEE SITE FILE STAFF FOR HE:
STREET AND NUMBER: ORIGINALP HOTO(S) OR MAP? S; -
(o]
z
CITY OR ToWN: [s7a7e: cone %
[}
»
-
m
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[7. DESCRIPTION

(Check One)
CONDITION ] Excellant 3¢ Good 0O F.ﬁ' 3 Deteriarared O3 Ruins 0 Unexposed
{Check Oneg) ) R (Check One)
O Atltered @ Unaltered . [J Moved (¥ Original Site

OESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (If known) PRYSICAL APPEARANCE

At 14 Catherine Street on the edge of Jacksonville's
once elegant downtown area, stands the No. 3 Fire Station
which was first occupied March 4, 1902. The station was
built to replace the one which stood on East Bay Street
near Railroad Avenue and was destroyed in the fire of
May 3, 1901. (See map of district burned).

_ The two story structure is entirely of brick, but
with a darker brick veneer on the front. This veneer
is one brick deep laid in common bond. All other brick
is laid in a pattern of five rows of stretchers alter-
nating with one row of he€aders. This gives a definite

~ pattern to the wall surface and in some cases is used to
indicate its solidity. The walls are solid and measure
approximately 12 inches in thickness. Window lintels are
of stone on the front and brick on the sides. A brick
chimney appears on the left side of the building very
near the front corner. It projects only about four' inches
from the wall surface and is very narrow. It was attached
through a flue on the interior to a pot-bellied stove.
The facade of the building is not balanced due to the off-
center placement of the double doors through which the
engine passed. These doors are approximately nine feet
high and arched at the top with nine square panes of
glass in each. To the left of these is a smaller door
used for normal entry and to the right is the entrance
to the hose drying racks. All doors and hardware are
original. All windows are double hung movable sash with
two  large panes above and below. Six bronze stars
decorate the facade of the building and in the center
of each star is a large bolt indicating that they are tie
beams to floor supports. Originally a large horseshoe
adorned the wall over the main door, but this has long
since disappeared. :

338

SNOILONUYHLSNI

All interior flooring, which is pine, is original.
To the right of the entry is a call box which housed the
alarm bell and later the telephone. To the left is the
stall area where two horses were kept, with an enclosed
Staircase behind. This led to the second floor guarters
where the firemen slept. A seven foot wainscote adorns
the left wall of the engine room whereas the right side
is a wall of vertical panelling behind which the hose
drying racks were located. The whole building consists
of one large room over another, with the drying racks,
coal bin and other storage closets being the only

separate areas. '

;

4 .

¢ - L
4

§

t
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. SIGNIFICANCE

BERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriste)

[ Pra-Columbian! ) 18th Century {3 19th Century 20th Century
CJ 15th Century 0 7th Contury O 19th Century
SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicadle and Known) 1902
AREAS OF 3IGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate) . :
Abar iginal {3 Eduecation {1 Palitical - 01 Urben Planning
3 Prehistoric [ Engineering 3 Religion/Phi- ‘;E Other (Specity)
O Historie 3 Indusery lesaphy _Commercial
0 Agriculture O Invention O Science _A:Qmm
[ Architecture O Landscape [ Sculpture
O Ant Architscture 1 Sociai/Human-
{0 Commerce J Literarure itarian
) Communications 3 Mmilitary [ Theater
O Consarvation 0 Music [ Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Clty of Jacksonville has had a hlstory of both de-
vastatlng fires and fire fighting. 1In the or1g1na1
charter of the Town of Jacksonville was a provision per-
taining to safequards agalnst fire and filing severe
penalties for carelessness in the use of fire. As early
as 1850 efforts were being made to fight fires in the
town. 1In 1868 a volunteer company was organized and in
1886 a paid department was established. At that time
only four stations existed, one of which was located at
East Bay Street between Washlngton and Catherine Streets.
This station was later moved to East Bay Street near
Railroad Avenue where it burned to the ground during
the great ‘fire of 1901. The present Catherine Street
Station was built to replace it and was occupled
March 4, 1902.

INSTRUCTIONS.

The station housed one engine and two horses
below and had quarters for the men above. Besides
the interior staircase there was the traditional brass
pole which the men used to .slide down to the engine
i room. The horses were used until 1921 and at that time
the stalls were taken out providing additional floor
space for newer and larger engines. In 1933 the station
was closed down as far as active use is concerned and
the building was converted to a repair shop for the
engines. It now serves as a storage building for the
fire department.

SEE

The building is in excellent repalr and serves
" as a proud reminder of Jacksonville's long history of
firefighting. The structures clean lines and highly
functional design offer a. good example of municipal
architecture at the turn of the century.
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9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Davis, T. Frederick.

History of Jacksonville, Florida

. and Vicinity.
Florida Press, 1964.

Gainesville:

Jacksonville Fire Department. ' Annual ‘Repor‘f.

University of

1966.

“GEQGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LLONGITUDE COORDINATES

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES

OEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY 0| OEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
_ R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUCE LONGITUDE
Degress Minutes Seconds | Degress Minutes Seconds Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
W L 2 » - L] » - o » - o ] -
:E . _ X : . 30 197 29 8l 39 3
SE o . - ) L] . - » ’
Sw L] . . o : .

APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

less than an acre

wv
LIST ALL STATES ANO COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES
STATE: CODE | COUNTY cooe m
m
STATE: CODE COUNTY: cootk
STATE: CODE COUNTY: CQDE z
w
STATE: cooe | counTy: cope -]
> iy ”
-"FORM PREPARED BY.- BRI =~
NAME AND TITLE:
. (@]
Diane D, Greer
ORGANIZATION ] DATE wf
Division of Archives, History, & Records Mgt 9/9/71 -
STREET AND NUMBER: T - O T o
Department of State - The Capitol =
[e'Tv or Town: STATE COOE )
. : wv
Florid 12

|____ - Tallahassee :
[12.STATE LIAISON OFFICER CERTIFICATION °

C o e

NATIONAL REGISTER VERIFICATION

"As the designated State Liaison Dfficer for the Na-
tional Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665). I hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the National Register and certify that it has been
evaluated according to the criteria and procedures set
forth by.the National Park Service. The recommended
level of significance of this nomination is:

t hereby certify that this property is included in the
National Register.

Chief, Office of Atcheology and Historic Praeservation

]

National (] State [ Local [}
Date

Name ATTEST: ¥

Title i
Keeper of The National Register
i
" Date - Date '
GPo 901 .087
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Index vy state , page so, time us/2 172001 16:51:54

ragelotl

Index By State
National Register Information System 08/31/2001 16:51:54
No filter Include filter in navigation (]
STATE: FL
COUNTY: Duval
Row| RESOURCE NAME | ADDRESS ] CITY ©|LISTEDt| MULTIPLE
351 |Broward, Napoleon 953 Hecksher |Jacksonwville — [1972-1227
Bonaparte, House Dr.
352 |Buckman and Ulmer -33 W, Jacksonville  ]1992-12-30 |Downtown
Building Monroe St. ' Jacksonville MPS
333 |Carling Hotel 33 W. Adams St. JJacksonville ~— [1991-02-28
354 |Casa Marina Hotel 12 Sixth Ave., N.Jacksonville ~ [1993-09-02
Beach
333 jCatherine Strget Fire 14 Catherine St. [Jacksonville ~ [1972-06-13
Stajion
336 |Centennial Hall-Edward |1658 Kings Rd. [Jacksonville |1976-05-04
Waters College
337 |Church of the Immaculate [121 E. Duval St. [Jacksonville  }1992-12-30 _|Downtown
Conception Jacksonville MPS
358 |Dyal-Upchurch Building [4 E. Bay St. Jacksonville  [1980-04-17
359 |El Medelo Block 513 W. Bay St. [Jacksonwille — 11980-10-16
360 |ETks Club Building 201-213 N. Jacksonville  {2000-03-09  [Downtown

../report.iws7ZIWS_ROWS=351%0A10%0A&IWS_REPORT=100000037&IWS_WINDOW=R/31/2001
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NATIONAL PARK SERVICE
P.0, BOX 37127
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20013-7127

IN REPLY REFER TO:

The Director of the National Park Service is pleased to inf"@'ﬁ %>
you that the following properties have been ente
in the National Reglister of Historic Places.
For further Information call 202/343-9542.

WEEKLY LIST OF ACTIONS TAKEN ON PROPERTIES: 10/13792 THROUCH 10/16/92

KEY: State, county, Property Name. Address/Boundary. City, vicinity, Reference Number nHL Status, Action, Date, multiple Name

ALABAMA, BUTLER COUNTY, Howard, John w., House and Outbuiidings. AL 10E. Creenvilie vicinily, 92001000, NOMINATION, 9/04/92
ALABAMA. CLARKE COUNTY, Galnestown Schoothouse, w. side Calnestown--suggsville Public Rd. N of Cood Hope church, Galnestown,
92000033, NOMINATION, 10/01/92 ) :

ALABAMA, DE KALB COUNTY, Alabama Bullder's Hardwase Manufacturing Company complex (Boundary inc¢rease), 203--204 sth St.,
NE., FOrt Payne. 92000637, BOUNDARY INCREASE, 10/13/92

ARIZONA, MARICOPA COUNTY. Tempe Bridge. Abandoned road over Salt River, Tempe. 88001606, REMOVAL. 10/02/92 (vehicular
Bridges in Arizona mps) -
ARIZONA, PINAL COUNTY, LOss, John C.. house, 107 w. Main Ave.. Casa Grande, 85000889, REMOVAL, 10/02/92 (Casa Grande MRA)
ARTZONA, YAVAPAI COUNTY, Curtis Hall., 133 S. mcCormick, Prescott, 78003221, REMOVAL, 10/01/92 (Prescott Tefritorial
Buildings MRA)

ARTZONA. YAVAPAL COUNTY, Mulyepnon House, 233 S. Cortez, Prescotl, 73003244, REMOVAL. 10/02/92 (Prescott Terrltorial
Buildings MRA)

ARKANSAS., CARLAND COUNTY. Rix, charles N, House. 628 Quapaw Ave., Hot SPrings. 92001393, NOMINATION, 10/15/92

ARKANSAS, UNION COUNTY, Smith--mcCurey House, AR 15 N side, 3.5 mi. E of El Dorado, El porado vicinity, 92001394,
NOMINATION, 10/15/92

CALIFORNIA, RIVERSIDE CONTY, Southern Hotel, 445 D St., Perrlis, 92001384, NOMINATION, 10/15/92

CAL LFORNIA, SAN DIECO COUNTY, Kuchamaa, SE of San Diego at the US--mexico bordef, Tecale vicinity, 92001268, NOMINATION,
10/06/92 .

COLORADO, OENVER COUNTY, Cebhard Mansion, 2253 Downing St., Denver, 92001254, NOMINATION, 10/01/92

DELAWARE, NEW CASTLE COUNTY. Archmere. 3600 Philadelphia Pike, Claymont. 92001143, NOMINATION, 9/09/92 /
DELAWARE, NEW CASTLE COUNTY, Springer, charles, Tavern 4921 Lancaster Pike, Chiistiana Hundred, wilmington vicinity. H
92001142, NOMINATION. 9/11/92 1410 E. Hdems S%’ e

EL_QQDA.._DWALJ;&NW _catherine Siieal Fife Sfation. #=Gatherine=St". Ja jacksonvi | 13:*11000:09.-9&090550  MOVE. 36769197
INDIANA, KOSCIUSKO COUNTY, Hal!l fFarm, jct. of 600 N and 400 W, Clunette, 920011647 NOMINATION, 9/15/92

1OWA. CERRO CORDO COUNTY, Stockman, Dr_ G, C., House, 311 1st St.. SE, Mason City, 80001441, NOMINATION, 9/17/92 (Prairie
schoo! Architecture in Mmason City TR) )

MARYLAND. BALTIMORE COUNTY, pake Roland Historic pistrict, Robert E. Lee Memorial park, Baltimare (Independent City)
vicinily, 92001285, NOMINATION, 10/15/92

MINNESOTA, RAMSEY COUNTY, Harriel Island pavilion, 75 water St., St. Paul. 92000821, NOMINATION, 7/10/92

MiSSISSIPPI, WILKINSON COUNTY, centreville Historic District, Roughly bounded by Cherokee. Laurel and St. mary Sts..
Centreville, 92001091, NOMINATION, 10/13/92

NEW JERSEY. CAMDEN COUNTY, Camden Free Publtc tibrary sain gujlding. §16 Broadway  Camden. 920013385, NOMINATION, 10/15/92
NEW JERSEY. MORR!S COUNTY, Anthony--Corwin Fafm, 244 W. Mill Rd., washington Township, Lonhg Vvalley vicinily. 92000371,
NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (Stone Houses and cutbuildings in washington Township mPS)

NEW JERSEY., MORRIS COUNTY, Craft--Clausen House. 170 Fairmont Rd.. washington Township, Long valley vicinity. 92000372,
NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (Stone Houses and Qutbuildings in washington Township MPS)

NEW JERSEY, MORRIS COLNTY, Fiock--Stephens Farmstead. 244 Flocklown Rd.. washington Township, Long valley vicinity,
92000373. NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (sStone Houses and Outbuildings in washington Township mPs)

NEW JERSEY. MORRIS COUNTY. Nefghbor, teonard, Farmstead, 177 W. mill Rd., washington Township. Long valley vicinily,
92000374, NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (Stone Houses ‘and Outbuildings  in-washington Township" mps)

NEW JERSEY, MORRIS COUNTY, Rartck--Kellihan House, 358 Fairview Ave., washinglcn Township, tong valley vicinity, 92000375,
NOMINATION, 5/01/91 (Stone Houses and Outbulidings In washington Township MPS)

NEwW JERSEY. MORRIS COUNTY, Sharpenstine rarmstead, 98 E. mill Rd., washington fownshlp Long valley vicinity, 92000376,
NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (Stone Houses and Outbuildings in washington Township MPS)

NEW JERSEY, MORRIS COUNTY, Tri t-~Dufford Farmstead. 186 w. Mill Rd., washington ;cwnship, Long valley viclnity, 92000377,
NOMINATION, 5/01/92 (Stonhe Houses and cutbuildings in washington Township wPs)

NEW JERSEY, WARREN COUNTY, Johnsonbue stord Istrict. NjJ 519 and 661 and adjace: !t parls of mott and Allamuchy Rds..
Frelinghuysen Township, johnsonrbufg., 92001386, NOMINATION, 10/15/92

OHIO., MONTCOMERY COUNTY, Fire Blocks Mistoric Oistrict. Roughly bounded by jefferson, Fourlh, $t. Clair and Second Sts..
Dayton, 92001374, NOMINATION, 10/15/92

OH10, MONTCOMERY COUNTY, Schantz Park Mistoric District, Roughly bounded by Far Mills. i1rving, mahart and Schenck aves..
Oakwood, 92001492, NOMINATION, 10/16/92

At Yk Gy L 19
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE
Jim Smith
Secretary of State
DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES
R.A. Gray Building
$00 South Broncugh
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-02%0
Director’s Office Telecopier Number {(FAX)
(904) 488-1480 {904) 488-3353
August 17, 1992

Ms. Carol D. Shull

Chief of Registration

National Register of Historic Places
National Park Service

Department of the Interior

Post Office Box 37127

Washington, D.C. 20013-7127

Dear Ms. Shull:

Enclosed is a request from Charles D. Clark, Director and Fir
Chief for the Fire and Rescue Department of the City of '
Jacksonville, Florida, to retain the National Register listing of
the Catherine Street Fire Station, Jacksonville, Duval County,
Florida, during and after its proposed relocation.

" The required documentation is complete, and was reviewed by the
Florida National Register Review Board at its scheduled meeting
on August 11, 1992, in accordance with 36 CFR 60.14(b)}. The
professional staff of the State Historic Preservation Office
concurs with the unanimous recommendation of the Review Board
that this request be approved.

The Catherine Street Fire Station was listed in the National
Register on June 13, 1972. The station was built in 1902 in the
aftermath of the Great Fire of 1901 which destroyed almost all of
downtown Jacksonville. It was manned by black firemen until 1905
and, therefore, was included in the Florida Black Heritage Trail
in 1992. Since 1973, the building has housed a valuable .
collection of historic fire fighting equipment, and has served as
the Jacksonville Fire Museum. In 1982, it was designated the
official museum of the Florida State Fire Fighters Association.

Over the past two decades the building’s setting has been
drastically altered. The Fire Station is now surrounded by a
Duval County jail facility and a municipal Police Memorial
Building, and is visually overwhelmed by massive nearby
construction. In addition, the county now plans to construct a
courthouse directly across the street from the Fire Station.

COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1
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30_7
Ovis

Ms. Carol Shull
August 17, 1992
Page Two

These surrounding developments have been detrimental to the
maintenance and use of the building, severely restricting its
.public accessibility and placing its long range preservation in
great jeopardy.

Metropolitan Park, two miles east of the station’s present site,
has been proposed as a new site for the building. A survey of
the new site shows no evidence of historic or archaeologlcal
significance. A copy of the survey is attached. The new site,
like the original, is located near the St. Johns River. It is
currently an open area adjacent to an existing municipal park.
Plans for the development of the site include the construction of
a road similar to the old Catherine Street and ample proviSLQn
for visitor parking in conjunction with the expansion of exlstlng
park facilities. 1In addition, the construction of a new Marine
Fire Station will allow supervision by the staff of the Marine
Fire Station which will ensure the security of the building and
museum collection.

The Jacksonville Fire and Rescue Department proposes to relocate
the building according to a plan proposed by Hygema House Movers,
Inc. of Jacksonville, Florida. A copy of their proposal is
enclosed.

The relocation of the Fire Station will not replicate the
historic setting of the building’s original location at the edge
of the area burned 'in the Great Fire. However, it will have no
effect on the integrity of design, materials, or workmanship of
the building, and is, in our opinion, essential to the
preservation of these major elements of its historic
51gn1flcance. Furthermore, its preservatlon adjacent to the new
Marine Fire Station will enhance its integrity of feeling and
-association as a significant reminder of Jacksonville’s fire
fighting heritage. Finally, the relocation will provide renewed
accessibility to the public, which is critical to the physical
preservation of the resource and to the meaningful interpretation
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of the significance for which it is listed in the National
Register of Historic Places.

We look forward to your favorable consideration of this
request. Please feel free to contact Bill Thurston of my

staff at (904) 487-2333 if you have any questions or need
additional documentation.

Sincerely,

D Wnthor

eoyge W. Percy
st Historic
Preservation Officer

GWP : bem
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FIRE AND RESCUE DEPARTMENT
Office of the Director/Fire Chief
Charles D. Clark

Mr. George W. Percy, Director
Division of Historical Resources
Florida Department of State

R. A. Gray Building

500 Bronough Street, South
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

Dear Mr. Percy:

On behalf of the City of Jacksonville, I am requesting a review by
your Division and the Florida National Register Review Board of our
plans to relocate the Catherine Street Fire Station presently

located at 12 Catherine Street in the downtown area. Specifically,

‘we are requesting a determination of continued eligibility for

listing on the National Register of Historic Places if moved to the

new location described in this letter.

Constructed in 1902, the Catherine Street Fire Station (#3) opened
just ten months after the "Great Fire of 1901" that destroyed most

' of downtown Jacksonville. It replaced an earlier fire station on
- Bay Street that was destroyed by the fire. The fire station was

manned by black firemen until 1905. In 1920, the Fire Department
shop facilities were housed in the rear of the station. The last
active firefighting company left the station in 1928; however, the
'shop continued in operation until 1952. ‘From 1952 until 1973, the
station was used only for ‘storage. The front facade of the two-
story brick building features large arched doors built originally
for accommodating horsedrawn fire wagons. Between the first and
second floors are six star-shaped tie rod ends.

In 1973, the plans for the new Police Memorial Building which was

to occupy the entire block, were modified to go around the
Catherine Street Fire Museum. By 1982, the station had been
repaired and re-opened as the Jacksonville Fire Museum under the
direction of the Jacksonville Fire and Rescue Department. With
over 700 items on display, the Museum documented the history of
firefighting in Jacksonville, as well as the promotion of fire
prevention and safety. In November, 1982, the Museum was
recognized as the official State Fire Museum by the Florida State
Firemen's Association. Listed on the National Register in 1973,

the station is also being considered as part of Florida's Black

107 MARKET STREET ¢ JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA 32202-2882 « (S04) 630-2456 = FAX (904) 830-2651
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Heritage Trail because of its association with early black
firefighters.

The Catherine Street Fire Station (#3) was constructed to serve the
eastern part of downtown Jacksonville which until recent years was
primarily industrial along the waterfront with a mixture of
commercial and residential uses to the north. With few exceptions,
the industrial and residential uses have decreased and have been
replaced by governmental complexes and nrivate offices.

Governmental expansion has particularly affected the structural
integrity and historic context of the Catherine Street Fire
Station. As an alternative to demolition, the station was
encircled by the new Police Memorial Building in 1973. In the late
1980's, Catherine Street was closed just north of the station for
the construction of a massive, six-story detention facility. The
- large vacant property across from the station is the proposed site
for a new courthouse. In addition to the loss of original context,
the construction of the jail has also affected the structural
integrity of the station which now requires stabilization of the
foundation at an estimated cost of $22,000. In addition, there is
evidence of deterioration of the mortar joints on the south, west
and north sides, as well as some recent water damage on the inside.

Thousands of students and adults have visited the Catherine Street
Fire Museum since it opened in 1982. However, visitation and
enjoyment of the Museum and the building have been limited by two
important factors: Tours have been limited to the first floor due
to structural deficiencies, and because of recent construction
around the station, as well as the closure of Catherine Street,
parking, particularly for buses, is difficult. Also, the visitor
.appeal of the general area around the station has been negatively
impacted by the police station and the detention center.

The Fire and Rescue Department and the City of Jacksonville have
remained committed to the preservation of this landmark building
and the valuable collection it contains. However, due to the loss
of the surrounding historic context and with limited opportunities
for visitor enhancement, the Fire and Rescue Department proposes to
relocate this building to City-owned property adjacent to
Metropolitan Park. This relocation will require placing the
building on a barge and moving ‘it due east one half mile to a
vacant parcel located just west of the park. The building will be
relocated to face east which is the present orientation of the
building. At the new location, the building will still remain in
its original service area. Catherine Street will be replicated in
front of the relocated building and provide access to the station
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-from the parking lot at Metropolitan Park. Once relocated, the
building will be rehabilitated following the Secretary of
Interior's standards.

Relocation to the new site will provide several advantages for the
Catherine Street Fire Museum. First, the station will be adjacent
to the new marine fire station also planned for that site.
Personnel from the marine fire station will ensure that the
Catherine Street Fire Museum will be epened on 2 regular basis.
Second, future plans also include the construction of a separate
collection storage and exhibit preparation area for the Museum.
Lack of space at the present location does not allow for this
needed improvement in the Museum operation. One of Jacksonville's
largest regional parks, Metropolitan Park, is the site of numerous
festivals and events drawing between 300,000 to 500,000 visitors
each year. The three-day long Jacksonville Jazz Festival alone

draws 100,000 wvisitors. During the week, hundreds of school
groups, organizations, and family reunions utilize the park for
picnics and field trips. By being accessible to park visitors,

thousands of Jacksonville citizens and out-of-town visitors will
have the opportunity to tour and enjoy the Catherine Street Fire
Museum. Ample parking for both cars and buses is available at

Metropolitan Park. The Jlower eastside of downtown is the
recreation and sports center of the city and in addition to
Metropolitan Park includes the Gator Bowl, the Veterans Memorial
Coliseum, Wolfson Park (baseball) and the Greater Jacksonville
Agricultural Fair. ' '

The reason that relocation is being considered for the station at
this time is the continued deterioration of the building and the
need for extensive rehabilitation. We believe it would be a more
prudent investment to rehabilitate the building at the proposed new
site which allows for enhancement of the Museum while providing
greater public access. Also, at its current location, the station
-will face continued pressures from possible expansion of the Police
Memorial Building, as well as additional structural damage from the
construction of the proposed new courthouse. Additionally, if the
courthouse is constructed, there will not be adequate space to move
the station out for relocation. Therefore, relocation may not
continue to be an option. The concluding paragraph in the
statement of significance for the National Register Nomination of
the Catherine Street Fire Station states "The building is in
excellent repair and serves as a proud reminder of Jacksonville's
long history of firefighting.  The structure's clean lines and
highly functional design offer a good example of municipal
architecture at the turn of the century." If properly relocated
and rehabilitated, we believe this statement will not be comprised ':;

&
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while at the same time greatly enhancing public use and
appreciation for this landmark building and significant museum
collection. Your kind consideration of our request is greatly
appreciated. .

Sincerely,

Charles D. Clark
Directox/Fire Chief

CDC:hw
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FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF STATE.
Jim Smith
Secretary of State
DIVISION OF HISTORICAL RESOURCES
R.A. Gray Building
500 South Bronough
Tallahassee, Florida 323990250
Director's Office Telecopier Number (FAX)
(904) 488-1480 (904) 488-3353

November 16, 1992

Mr. John M. Peavy
P.I.0./Special Projects
Fire and Rescue Department
city of Jacksonville

107 Market Street
Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Dear Mr. Peavy:

We are pleased to advise you that your request for prior
approval of the relocation of the Catherine Street Fire
Station was approved by the Keeper of the National Register
of Historic Places on October 9, 1992.

This approval means that the Catherine Street Fire Station
will retain its listing in the National Register of Historic
Places during and after its relocation, provided the move is
completed as outlined in your request. We suggest that you
fully document the move with photographs which demonstrate
the process and show the building in its relocated setting.

Please keep us posted as the project progresses, and advise
us when the relocation has been completed. And please let
us know if we can be of any further assistance.

Sincerely,

Percy
Historic Preservation
Officer

GWP:bem
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Archaeological Research Florida Folklife Programs Historic Preservation Museum of Florida History
(904) 487-2299 (904) 397-2192 (904) 487-2333 (904) 488-1484

|
ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

i

STATE  FLORIDA

Date Entered JUN 13 %72

Name

Weeden (Weedon) Island Site

The Grove

Fort Cooper

Catherine Street Fire Station

Fish Island Site

Fort Foster |

Location

St. Petersburg
Pinellas County

Tallahassee
Leon County

Inverness vicinity
Citrus County

Jacksonville
Duval County

St. Augustine
St. Johns County

Zephyrhills vicinity
Hillsborough County

COPY OF CONGRESSIONAL NOTIFICATION

Also Notified
. Hon. Edward J. Gurney '
" llon.: Lawton Mainor Chiles, Jr. A
Hon.‘C:IW. (Bill) Young :
Hon. Don* Fuqua

Hon. William V. Chappell, Jr.
Hon. Charles E. Bennett

Hon. Sam M. Gibbons

B v,
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United St...2s Department of the Inte. .or
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

IN REPLY REFLR TO:

The Director of the Nétional Park Service

George B. Hartzog, Jr.

is pleased to inform you that thé historic property listed on the

enclosed sheet has been nominateé by the State Liaison Officer

responsible for your State's iﬁplementation of the National Historic

Preservation Act of 1966, P. L. 89-665 (80 Stat. 915), as amended.

It has accordingly been entered in the National Register of Historic
1

Places. A leaflet explaining thé National Register is enclosed for

!
your information and convenience.

Enclosures

|
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.f:f?jJACiKSONVILLE HISTORIC RESERVATlON COMMISSION

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

| - The Jacksonv:lle HIStOl‘lc Preservatlon omm:ss:on erI hold a Publlc

Hearing, pursuant to. Section: 307- 104, C/ty ‘of. Jacksonville” Ordinance - -

- Code on Application No.: LM-11-01 regardmg the proposed. deS|gnat|on_'_~'5

“of the" Cathenne Street Fire Statlon at 1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard,- Real- -

":".{Estate # 130572:0000, as a. City o

B cksonvrlle Landmark as noted;
?‘below Lo :

o __5Date | Wednesday, February 23_2011

300 P. I

" Place: . | Room 851Z'
o 8" Floor S ST
- - Ed:Ball- BU|Id|ng
" 214 North Hogan Stree
. _’.”Jacksonvnlle Florlda

‘ f}lnformatlon concernmg the,:‘proposed de3|gnat|on is on’ flle wuth the'

- ."Jacksonville Historic  Preservation -Commission. - and avarlable for.

~ inspection from 8:00 A. M. until 5:00°P. M. Monday through Friday at the - -
Offices of the Planning and Development Department, Swte 300 214m
North Hogan Street Jacksonwlle Flonda (904) 255 7859 S -

.ALL PERSONS INTERESTED ARE NOTIFIED TO BE .
S 'PRESENT AT SAID TIME AND'PLACE; AND THEY-MAY- "~ .
" -BE ‘HEARD -WITH: . RESPECT TO THE PROPOSED‘.:

' .DESIGNATION ' - B
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The Commission will make a recommendation as to whether the
referenced property should or should not be designated as a Local
Landmark. The recommendation will be forwarded to the Jacksonville
City Council for final action.

If a person decides to appeal a decision of the Jacksonville
Historic Preservation Commission with respect to any matter
considered at such meeting, he will need a record of the
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he may need to
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made,
which record includes the testimony and evidence upon
which the appeal is to be based. § 286.0106, Florida

Statutes
Exhibit A
BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
Real Estate Assessment Numbers: 130572-0000

Legal Description:  45-2S-27E 24.002, HUDNALL GRANT, PT
RECD O/R 5739-1126
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LM-11-01 -
Catherine Street Fire Station #3
1406 Gator Bowl Boulevard

200 0 200 400 Feet
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PROOF OF PUBLICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE
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FiNANCIAL NEWS &

~ Record PROOF OF PUBLICATIoN

(Published Daily Except Saturday and Sunday)
Jacksonville, Duval County, Florida

SAAPPR PUW BWRT A, 'GOCZE TPHO
. pr 1QF oy Vpeng 48 1Y

STATE OF FLORIDA,
, , SS:
COUNTY OF DUVAL,

. Before the undersigned authority personally appeared James F. Bailey, Jr., who on
oath says that he is the Publisher of FINANCIAL NEWS and DAILY RECORD, a daily
(except Saturday and Sunday) newspaper published at Jacksonville, in Duval County,
Florida; that the attached copy of advertisement, being a

Notice of Public Hearing

in the matter of__atherine Street Fire Station #3

in the _ Court, of Duval County, Florida, was published
February 9, 2011 .

in said newspaper in the issues of

Affiant further says that the said FINANCIAL NEWS and DAILY RECORD is a newspaper
at Jacksonville, in said Duval County, Florida, and that the said newspaper has heretofore
been continuously published in said Duval County, Florida, each day (except Saturday and
Sunday) and has been entered as periodicals matter at the post office in Jacksonville, in said
Duval County, Florida, for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of the
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor
promised any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for the
purpose of securing this advertisement for publicatiopin saidigewspaper. ‘

Sworn to and subscribed bk

- ERIGA HANEBRINK
Notary Publlic, State of Florida

L

My cormm.exp. May 3, 2014 & A
Comm. No. DD 988127 Notary Signacure
Erika Hanebrink
1 : Notary Public
seal James F. Bailey, Jr. personally known to me DD988127
Franias News 1 COMPOSITE EXHIBIT 1
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LIST OF PROPERTY OWNERS LOCATED
WITHIN THREE HUNDRED AND FIFTY FEET
OF THE PROPOSED LANDMARK SITE
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CHANNEL TWELVE OF JAX INC
1070 E ADAMS ST
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202-1902
LM-11-01

CITY OF JACKSONVILLE

C/O REAL ESTATE DIVISION
220 BAY STE

RM 1208

JACKSONVILLE, FL 32202-3429
LM-11-01
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NORTH BANK DEVELOPERS LLC
10739 DEERWOOD PARK SUITE #300
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32256

LM-11-01
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE
HISTORIC PRESERVATION
COMMISSION

nm AW N -

6 Proceedings held on Wednesday, February 23, 2011,
7 commencing at 3:06 p.m., Ed Ball Building, 214 North
8 Hogan Street, 8th Floor, Jacksonville, Florida, before

9 Diane M. Tropia, a Notary Public in and for the State of
10 Florida at Large.

11

12 PRESENT:

13 DAVID B. CASE, Chair.
RICHARD MOORE, JR., Vice Chair.

14  ANGELA SCHIFANELLA, Secretary.
JOSEPH F. THOMPSON, Commission Member.

15 LISA SIMON, Commission Member.
JENNIFER MANSFIELD, Commission Member.

16 JOHN ALLMAND, Commission Member.
17 ALSO PRESENT:

18  JOEL McEACHIN, Planning and Development Dept.
SAMANTHA PAULL, Planning and Dev Dept.

19  LISA SHEPPARD, Planning and Development Dept.
AUTUMN MARTINAGE, Planning and Dev Dept.

20  SCHERRIE REED, Planning and Development Dept.
21

22
23
24
25
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at -- for a possible demolition by neglect
prosecution, and to also require the -- board
and secure.
MR. TEAL: And also, I guess, to require
an alternative of a finding that it's not
economically feasible to perform whatever those
actions are. |
MS. MANSFIELD: Supported by at least
three bids on the work.
MR. THOMPSON: TI'll second that.
THE CHAIRMAN: Okay. We have a motion and
a second.
All those in favor, aye.
COMMISSION MEMBERS: Aye.
THE CHAIRMAN: Those against.
COMMISSION MEMBERS: (No response.)
THE CHAIRMAN: Hearing none, you have
denied the demolition of 1325 North Laura
Street.
All right. Now we'll move on to
certificates of appropriateness.
MS. SCHIFANELLA: The landmark?
THE CHAIRMAN: Oh, I'm sorry, I skipped
over it.
Thank you.

EXHIBIT 2
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We're going to look at a landmark status
for Fire Station Number 3, 1406 Gator Bowl
Boulevard.

MR. McEACHIN: Mr. Chairman, this landmark
designation is technically sponsored by the
preservation commission as a continuation of
our efforts to designate as many City-owned
properties that qualify as possible.

The fire department is in support of this
designation. I have talked to them and they're
very much in support of it. It is not an
active fire station, of course. It is the
Jacksonville Fire Museum. And this is not its
original location. It was actually moved here
in 1994 from 12 Catherine Street, which is
right beside the Sheriff's Department.

Also, this building has a special
relationship with this group as well because
y'all's predecessor, the old Landmarks and
Cultural Commission, was very much involved in
saving this building and working with the fire
department to make it into a museum.

In doing the report and the research, we
found that the building met four of the

designation standards, and it's in the report
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that I provided and I'll be happy to go over
it, but I'm sure y'all don't want to hear it.

So we are recommending that it -- that a
motion be made to forward the landmark
designation to the City Council for this
particular building.

MS. MANSFIELD: Joel, I'm not familiar
with Catherine Street. Is that between the
police building and the Maxwell House?

MR. McEACHIN: Yes, between the -- it was
actually about -- the building faced east on
Catherine Street, in between the jail -- the
current jail and the police station. As a
matter of fact, they built the police station
around it and kept it right there, but the
problem is there was no parking. And when they
started construction of the jail, there was
concern about damage not be made structurally
to the building, so that was why the decision
was made to relocate it. But because of the
way it was placed and the loss of historical
context, the building did stay on the National
Registry even though it was relocated. |

THE CHAIRMAN: Okay. Any other --

MR. McEACHIN: It's a wonderful museum.

EXHIBIT 2
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If you haven't been there, you'd be quite
fascinated as to what they have, but they have
just an amazing collection of stuff.

MR. ALLMAND: Would designating this fire
station a landmark prevent it from being moved
again?

MR. McEACHIN: If it was going to have to
be moved again, which they won't do because
it's a great expense, but if it was, it would

have to come through this body under a COA.
There would have to be good reason,
justification as to why it would be moved. In
that particular case, it -- the justification
was made by the fact that the historical
context surrounding it was completely gone,
potential structural damage from the
construction of the jail, and then, of course,
there's no parking. There was no parking for
visitors to the museum. At least here now they
have those kinds of accommodations because
it's -- since it's part of the kids' campus.

THE CHAIRMAN: Any other questions of
staff?

COMMISSION MEMBERS: (No response.)

THE CHAIRMAN: I'll open it to a public
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hearing.

Would anybody like to speak on behalf of
the fire station?
AUDIENCE MEMBERS: (No response.)
THE CHAIRMAN: Seeing none, we'll close
the public hearing.
Comments, discussion?
COMMISSION MEMBERS: (No response.
THE CHAIRMAN: I will entertain a motion.
MR. ALLMAND: I'll make a motion to
approve landmark status for the Catherine
Street Fire Station Number 3, LM-11-01.
MS. SIMON: TI'll second it.
THE CHAIRMAN: Motion and second.
All those in favor, aye.
COMMISSION MEMBERS: Aye.
THE CHAIRMAN: Those opposed.
COMMISSION MEMBERS: (No response.)
THE CHAIRMAN: By your action, you are
recommending landmark status for the Catherine
Street Fire Station Number 3.
MR. McEACHIN: Thank you.
THE CHAIRMAN: Thank you.
Certificates of appropriateness,
number 1, COA-11-002, 3513 St. Johns Avenue.
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